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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To The Members of Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Fleur Hotels
Private Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31,
2024, and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the
Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended on
that date, and notes to the standalone financial statements, including a summary of
material accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view
in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the
Act, ("Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state
of affairs of the Company as at March 31 2024, and its profit, total comprehensive
income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing ("SAs”) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility
for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI”) together with the ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of
the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’'s Report Thereon

e The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Board’s report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements, standalone financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

e Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

e In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility
is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our
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knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

o If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5)
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other
comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including Ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets
of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management and Board of Directors is
responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the Board of Directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Company’s Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s
financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
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resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date
of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company
to cease to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work
and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the standalone financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal financial controls that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books, except for not
complying with the requirement of audit trail as stated in (i)(vi) below.
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c)

d)

e)

g)

h)

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other
Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes
in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind
AS specified under Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on
March 31, 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors
is disqualified as on March 31, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms
of Section 164(2) of the Act.

The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters
connected therewith, are as stated in paragraph (b) above.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness
of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”. Our report
expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of
the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended,

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, no remuneration (except sitting fees) has been paid by the Company
to its directors during the year.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as
amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its standalone financial statements - Refer Note 32(c) to the
standalone financial statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses. Refer Note
41 to the standalone financial statements;

ili. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company. Refer Note 44 to the
standalone financial statements;

iv. (@) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, as disclosed in the note 47 (viii) to the standalone financial
statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either
from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
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vi.

directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge

and belief, as disclosed in the note 47(ix) to the standalone financial
statements, no funds have been received by the Company from any
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered

reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to
our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under
sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b)
above, contain any material misstatement.

The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year and
has not proposed final dividend for the year.

Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has
used accounting software for maintaining its books of account for the year
ended March 31, 2024 wherein:

(a) an accounting software did not have audit trail feature enabled
throughout the year,

(b) in respect of a revenue management software used for maintaining its
revenue records, has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility
and the same has operated from July 1, 2023 for all relevant
transactions recorded in the software except the software does not have
feature of audit trail at database level to log direct data changes.

Further, during the course of our audit, we did not come across any
instance of audit trail feature being tampered with wherever enabled, in
respect of accounting software for the period for which the audit trail
feature was operating.

(Refer note 46 of the standalone financial statements).

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is
applicable from April 1, 2023, reporting under Rule 11 (g) of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on preservation of audit trail as per the
statutory requirements for record retention is not applicable for the
financial year ended March 31, 2024,
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2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by
the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure
B” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 28, 2024

N9

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 1173 /W-100018

Chartered

countants
Rajesh Kumar Agarwal
Partner

Membership No. 105546
UDIN: 24105546BKEPDA4140
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT of FLEUR HOTELS
PRIVATE LIMITED

(Referred to in paragraph 1(g) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to standalone financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements of Fleur Hotels Private Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction
with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended
on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls with reference to standalone financial statements based on the internal control with
reference to standalone financial statements criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to the company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required
under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with
reference to standalone financial statements of the Company based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively
in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to standalone financial
statements

A company’s internal financial control with reference to standalone financial statements is a
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to
standalone financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures
of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could
have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to standalone
financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
with reference to standalone financial statements may become inadequate because of changes
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with reference
to standalone financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the
criteria for internal financial control with reference to standalone financial statements
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP

Membership No. 105546
UDIN: 24105546BKEPDA4140

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 28, 2024

)
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Annexure “B” To The Independent Auditor’'s Report of Fleur Hotels Private
Limited

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and
the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the
best of our knowledge and belief, we state that:

(1)

(a)(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars,

including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and

Equipment and relevant details of right-of-use assets.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of

intangible assets.

(b) The Company has a program of verification of property, plant and equipment

(©)

so to cover all the items once every two years which, in our opinion, is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its
assets. Pursuant to the program certain Property, Plant and Equipment were
due for verification during the year and were physically verified by the
Management during the year. According to the information and explanations
given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

Based on the examination of the confirmation received by us from “Vistra
ITCL (India) Limited” (custodian) on behalf of Yes Bank, “Catalyst
Trusteeship Limited” (custodian) on behalf of Aditya Birla Finance Limited,
Kotak Mahindra Bank, Axis Bank, HDFC Bank and IndusInd Bank in respect
of immovable properties of land and buildings (other than properties where
the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in
favour of the Company) disclosed in the financial statements included in
property, plant and equipment whose title deeds have been pledged as
security for loans and guarantees are held in the name of the Company as
at the balance sheet date except for the following:

Description of | Gross Held in | Whether Period Reason for not
Property carrying | name of | Promoter, | held being held in
value director name of company
(Rs. in or their
lakhs) relative
or
emplovee
Freehold land of | 784.69 Meringue | N/A January | Meringue Hotels
Lemon Tree Hotel Hotels 31, 2020 | Private Limited was
located at Andheri Private amalgamated with
Mumbai Limited Fleur Hotels Private

admeasuring
5,552.9 sqmt

Limited under
section 230-232 of
the Companies Act,
2013 in terms of the
approval of the
National company
Law tribunal.
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(i)

(iii)

(d)

(e)

(a)

(b)

The Company has not revalued any of its property, plant and equipment
(including Right of Use assets) and intangible assets during the year.

No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against
the Company as at 31 March 2024 for holding any benami property under
the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and
rules made thereunder.

The inventories were physically verified during the year by the Management
at reasonable intervals. In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the coverage and procedure of such verification by
the Management is appropriate having regard to the size of the Company
and the nature of its operations. No discrepancies of 10% or more in the
aggregate for each class of inventories were noticed on such physicatl
verification of inventories when compared with books of account.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores, in
aggregate, at points of time during the year, from banks or financial
institutions on the basis of security of current assets. In our opinion and
according to the information and explanations given to us, the quarterly
returns or statements comprising operating performance (MIS) filed by the
Company with such banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the
unaudited books of account of the Company of the respective quarters and
no material discrepancies have been observed.

The Company has not made investments or provided security and advances in
nature of loans to any other entity during the year. The Company has granted
unsecured loans and stood guarantees to wholly owned subsidiaries during the
year, in respect of which:

(@

(b)

The Company has provided loans and stood guarantees during the year
and details of which are given below:

Particulars Guarantees (Rs. Loans (Rs in
in lakhs) lakhs)
A. Aggregate amount 46,000.00 17,228.51

granted /provided during
the year to Wholly owned
subsidiaries:

B. Balance outstanding as at 69,577.00 18,766.71*
balance sheet date in
respect of Wholly owned
subsidiaries:

* Includes equity component of loan given to subsidiary as per Ind AS
109 for Rs.2,566.05 lakhs and excludes interest accreted on the loan
component for Rs. 459.28 Lakhs.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company

has, during the year, provided guarantees and granted interest free

unsecured loans (refer reporting under clause (iii) (a) above and clause
_(iii)(f) below) to wholly owned subsidiaries covered in the register

——
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(c)

(d)

(e)

()

maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013, which, as
explained to us, have been made for meeting working capital
requirements and/or setting up new projects. In respect of these
guarantees provided and loans granted, the terms and conditions are, in
our opinion, prima facie, not prejudicial to the Company's interest after
considering the purpose for which guarantees are provided and loans have
been granted.

The Company has granted loans to wholly owned subsidiaries amounting
to Rs. 10,765.56 lakhs which are repayable on demand. During the year
the Company has not demanded such loan. Having regard to the fact that
the repayment of principal or payment of interest has not been demanded
by the Company, in our opinion the repayments of principal amounts and
receipts of interest are regular. (Refer reporting under clause (iii)(f)
below)

In respect of loans amounting to Rs. 8,001.15 Lakhs (including demand
loan converted to Long term loan amounting Rs.5,000.00 Lakhs during
the year) which was granted to one of its wholly owned subsidiary, the
schedule of repayment of principal has been stipulated and the
repayments of principal amounts are regular as per stipulation.

According to information and explanations given to us and based on the
audit procedures performed, in respect of loans granted by the Company,
there is no overdue amount remaining outstanding as at the balance sheet
date.

No loan granted by the Company which has fallen due during the year,
has been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the
overdues of existing loans given to the same parties. During the year the
Company has converted loan repayable on demand given to wholly owned
subsidiary amounting Rs. 5,000.00 Lakhs to long term loans repayable as
per stipulated schedule. (refer clause(iii)(c) above)

The Company has granted loans which are repayable on demand
amounting Rs. 10,765.56 lakhs, to its wholly owned subsidiaries. These
loans constitutes 57% of total loans given by the Company.

(iv) The Company has complied with the provisions of sections 186 of the Companies
Act, 2013 in respect of making investments. The Company has not granted any
loans or provided guarantee or security under section 185 of Companies Act
2013. As per section 186 (11) read with schedule VI, provision for section 186
with respect to grant of loans and providing guarantees would not apply to the
Company as the Company is providing infrastructural facilities.

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be
deposits. Hence, reporting under clause (v) of the Order is not applicable.

(vi) The maintenance of cost records has not been specified for the activities of the
Company by the Central Government under section 148(1) of the Companies Act,
2013.
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(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

In respect of statutory dues:

(a)

(b)

Undisputed statutory dues, including Goods and Service tax, Provident
Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Service tax, Income-tax, Value Added
Tax, cess and other material statutory dues applicable to the Company
have generally been regularly deposited by it with the appropriate
authorities in all cases during the year. We are informed that the duty of
Custom, sales tax and duty of Excise is not applicable to the company.

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and
Service tax, Service tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance,
Income-tax, Value Added Tax, cess and other material statutory dues in
arrears as at March 31, 2024 for a period of more than six months from
the date they became payable.

Details of statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) above which have
not been deposited as on March 31, 2024 on account of disputes are given
below:

Name of | Nature of | Amount Period Forum where
Statute Dues Involved (FY) to | dispute is
(Rs. In lacs) | which the | pending
amount
relates
Service Tax | Service Tax 79.34*% | 2007-2012 | Central Excise
Rule, 1994 and Service Tax
Appellate
Tribunal
Service Tax | Service Tax 49.88 | 2012-2017 | Central Excise
Rule, 1994 and Service Tax
Appellate
Tribunal
Income tax | Income 16.53** | FY 2016-17 | CIT (A)
Act, 1961 Tax

* Net of Rs. 23.10 lakhs paid under protest
** Net of Rs. 10.72 lakhs paid under protest/adjusted against refund

There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that were
surrendered or disclosed as income in the tax assessments under the Income Tax
Act, 1961 during the year.

(a)

In our opinion, the Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or

other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender during the

year.

(b)

)

The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or
financial institution or government or any government authority.

The Company has not taken any term loan during the year and there are
no unutilized term loans at the beginning of the year and hence, reporting
under clause(ix)(c) of the order is not applicable.
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(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(d)

(e)

()

(@)

(b)

(a)

(b)

(©)

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company,
funds raised on short-term basis have, prima facie, not been used during
the year for long-term purposes of the Company.

On overall examination of financial statements of the Company, the
Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account
of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries or associates. According to

the information and explanations given to us by the management, the
Company has utilised funds from internal accruals for investing and
granting loans to its wholly owned subsidiaries. (refer reporting under
clause (iii) above)

The Company has not raised any loans during the year and hence
reporting on clause(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further
public offer (including debt instruments) during the year and hence
reporting under clause (x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

During the year the Company has not made any preferential allotment or
private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or
optionally) and hence reporting under clause (x)(b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company. During the year, the Company has converted
Compulsory convertible preference shares into equity shares amounting to
Rs. 537.63 Lakhs (excluding security premium of Rs. 16,962.35 Lakhs)
(Refer Note 13 of the financial statements)

To the best of our knowledge, no fraud by the Company and no material
fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

To the best of our knowledge, no report under sub-section (12) of section
143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under
rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central
Government, during the year and upto the date of this report.

As represented to us by the Management, there were no whistle blower
complaints received by the Company during the year.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of
the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion, and according to the explanation given to us, the Company is in
compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, where applicable, for
all transactions with the related parties and the details of related party
transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements etc. as required by
the applicable accounting standards.

(@) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system
commensurate with the size and the nature of its business.

(b) We have considered, the internal audit reports issued to the Company
during the year.




Deloitte

Haskins & SellsLLP

(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

(xx)

In our opinion during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash
transactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors and hence
provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the
Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause (xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of
the Order is not applicable.

As informed by the management of the Company, the Group has one CIC as part
of the group.

The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial year covered by
our audit and in the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during
the year.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of
financial assets and payment of financial Iliabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of
Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us
to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report
indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the
date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from
the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to
the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based
on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee
nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from
the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they
fall due.

The Company did not have average net profits during the three immediately
preceding financial years and hence is not required to spend any money under
sub section (5) of Section 135(5) of the Act. There are no unspent CSR amounts
for the year requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the
Companies Act or special account in compliance with the provision of sub-section
(6) of section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause (xx) of the
Order is not applicable for the year.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

Chartered

countants Rajesh Kumar\Agarwal

Partner
Membership No. 105546
UDIN: 24105546BKEPDA4140

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 28, 2024
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Fleur Hotels Private Limited
CIN: U55101DL2003PTC207912
Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31. 2024

Note As at Asat
Partlculars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rs. [n lakhs Rs. in lakhs
ASSETS
Non-current assets
() Property, plant and equipment 3 1.33,845.07 1,36,395.54
(c) Other intangible assets 5 37.17 62.17
(d) Intangible assets under development 4 - 277.53
(e) Right-of-use asset 6 10,582.31 10,733.36
() Financial assets 7
(i) Investments 1,13,843.68 1,12,117.52
(ii) Loans 4,878.78 2,319.39
(iii) Other non-current financial assets 514.77 696.83
() Deferred tax assets (net} 18 - -
(h) Non-current tax assets (net) 8 771.28 703.14
(i} Other non-current assets 9 10.73 12.69
2,64.483.79 2,63.318.17
Current assets
(a) Inventories 10 532.61 424 .60
(b) Financial assets 11
(i) Trade receivables 2,233.57 1,874.64
(ii} Cash and cash equivalents 832.26 266.70
(iii) Other bank balances 750.00 330.00
(iv) Loans 11,781.16 14,476.85
(v) Other current financial assets 259.53 21.77
(c) Other current assets 12 2.198.67 1.700.26
18,587.80 19.100.82
Total Assets 2.83.071.59 2.82.418.99
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(@) Equity Share capital 13(a) 9,783.15 9,245.52
(b) Instruments entirely equity in nature 13(b) - 537.63
(c) Other equity 14 1.55.839.04 1.50.236.08
Total Equity 1.65.622.19 1.60.019.23
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 15 88,836.74 97,156.03
(ii) Lease liabilities 16 14,831.36 14,255.60
(b) Provisions 17 29.24 29.79
1.03.697.34 11144142
Current labilities
(a) Financial liabilities 19
(i) Borrowings 8,697.09 4,866.98
(ii) Lease liabilities 89.85 87.75
(iii) Trade payables
- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 600.28 563.58
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 2,756.74 4,392.62
and small enterprises
(iv) Other financial liabilities 239.99 22392
(b) Other current liabilities 20 1,227.03 680.59
(c) Provisions 17 141.08 142.90
13.752.06 10.958.34
Total Liabllities 1.17.449.40 1.22.399.76
Total Equity and Liabilities 2.83.071.59 28241899
Summary of material accounting policies 22
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 1to48
As per our report of even date
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
tile/ur)l{okls Private Limited
- 4
& by ant s
i S
- Patanjali Govind Keswani Aditya Madhav Keswani
Managing Director Director
DIN-00002974 DIN-07208901
Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai
o Qo
| .
Mayank Sharma
Chief Financial Officer ecreary
25838
Place : Gurugram Place : New Delhi - New Delhi

Date : May 28,2024

W

Date . May 28, 2024




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
CIN: U55101DL2003PTC207912
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024

Note For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rs. in lakhs Rs. in lakhs

Revenue from operations 21 43,291.59 37,424.72
Other income 22 47.04 126.27
Total income 43,338.63 37,550.99
Expenses
Cost of food & beverages consumed 23 2,645.41 2,261.42
Employee benefits expense 24 5,650.42 4,990.11
Power and fuel 25(a) 2,672.53 2,557.89
Stamp duty expenses 25(b) - 478.42
Other expenses 25(c) 12.247.94 9,619.50
Total expenses 23,216.30 19,907.34
Profit before finance cost, finance income depreciation and 20,122.33 17,643.65
amortization, and tax (EBITDA) (Refer note 2.2 (p))
Finance costs 26 10,730.87 9,972.17
Finance income 2 (311.89) (331.27)
Depreciation and amortization expense 28 4.098.75 4.427.70
Profit before tax 5,604.60 3,575.05
Tax expense
(1) Current tax 18 - -
(2) Deferred tax 18 - -
Profit for the year 5,604.60 3,575.05
Other comprehensive income
(i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurement losses on defined benefit plans (1.64) 1.98
Income tax effect - -

(1.64) 1.98
Total comprehensive income for the year 5,602.96 3,577.03
Eaming per equity share:
(1) Basic 29 5.73 3.65
(2) Diluted 29 5.73 3.65

1t0 48

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For Defoitte Haskins & Sells LLP

Place : Gurugram
Date : May 28, 2024

N

Place : New Dethi
Date : May 28, 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Fleur Hotels Private Limited

Hk \%anwft )

Patan]ah Govind Keswani
Managing Director
DIN-00002974

Place : Mumbai

ayank Sharma

Chief Financial Officer

I PALTLIAN kes o3

Aditya Madhav Keswani
Director

DIN-07208901

Place : Mumbai

arly Secretary
no.; A25838

\J
Place : New Delhi
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Fleur Hotels Private Limited
CIN: U55101DL2003PTC207912
Standalone Statement of Cash flow for the year ended March 31, 2024

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
A. Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax 5,604.60 3,575.05
Non-cash adjustments to reconcile profit/(loss) before tax to net cash flows:
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 4,098.75 4,427.70
Finance income (including fair value change in financial instruments) (311.89) (331.27)
Finance costs (including fair value change in financial instruments) 10,474.99 9,714.91
Provision for doubtful debts and advances 49.74 =
Provision for gratnity 12.34 11.70
Provision for leave encashment 5.92 7.00
Excess provision/ credit balances written back (6.74) (19.84)
Net loss/(gain) on write off /sale of property plant and equipment 27.87 (6.26)
Operating profit before working capital changes: 19,955.58 17,378.99
Movements in working capital:
Increase in trade receivables (408.66) (1,022.54)
Increase in loans and advances and other current assets (533.58) (473.97)
Increase in inventories . (108.01) (100.60)
Decrease in liabilities and provisions (1,081.00) (215.84)
Cash Generated from Operations 17,824.33 15,566.04
Direct taxes paid (net of refunds) (68.15) (231.17)
Net cash flow from operating activities (A) 17,756.18 15.334.87
B. Cash flows used in investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (adjustment of intangible under
development, capital advances and capital creditors) (679.05) (206.19)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant & equipment (0.01) 7.44
Short term loans (given)/repaid (to)/by subsidiaries (1,589.86) (12,580.96)
Investiment in fixed deposits (452.25) (315.00)
Interest received 331.54 545.18
Net Cash flow used in investing activities (B) (2,389.63) (12,549.53)
C  Cash flows used in financing activities
Payment towards reduction of outstanding lease liabilities (1,274.44) (1,271.10)
Proceeds from long term borrowings 16.46 5,490.00
Repayment of long term borrowings (2,669.49) (414.40)
(Repayment)/proceeds from short term borrowings (1,923.08) 175.75
Interest paid (8.950.44) (8,227.22)
Net Cash flow used in financing activities (C) (14.800.99) (4,246.97)

(This space has been intentionally left blank) ' ¥ - )




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
CIN: U55101DL2003PTC207912
Standalone Statement of Cash flow for the year ended March 31, 2024

For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rs in lakhs Rs in Jakhs

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (A +B + C) 565.56 (1,461.63)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 266.70 1,728.33
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 832.26 266.70
Components of cash and cash equivalents (refer note 11)

Cash on Hand 18.99 20.36
Balances with scheduled banks in

- Current accounts 813.27 246.34
Total cash and cash equivalents 832.26 266.70

1to48

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For Deloj laskins & Sells LLP

Chartere

Fleur Hotels Private Limited

t\‘._._.,m.-‘ —
Rajesh Kumar Agarwal Patanjali Govind Keswani
Managing Director
DIN-00002974

Place : Mumbai

yank Sharma

Chief Financial Officer

Place : New Delhi
Date : May 28, 2024

Place : Gurugram
Date : May 28, 2024
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
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Aditya Madhav Keswani
Director

DIN-07208901

Place : Mumbai
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Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

1. Corporate Information

Fleur Hotels Private Limited (the Company) is a private Company domiciled in India and is
incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India. The registered
office of the company is located at Asset No. 6. Aerocity Hospitality District, New Delhi-
110037.

The principal activities of the Companyis to carry out business of developing, owning,
acquiring, renovating and promoting hotels, motels, resorts, restaurants, etc. under the brand

name of Lemon Tree Hotel, Lemon Tree Premier, Red Fox Hotel and Aurika.

The financial statements are approved for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors

on May28, 2024.
2 Basis of preparation of financial statements and material accounting policies
2.1 Basis of preparation

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard (Ind
AS), and the provisions of the Com panies Act,2013 (‘the Act’) (to the extent notified) The Ind
AS are prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule3 of the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and relevant amendment rules issued thereafter.

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis using historical cost
convention and on an accrual method of accounting, except for certain financial assets and
liabilities which are measured at fair value/ amortised cost (refer note 34 below)

Accounting policies have been consistently applied.

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) and all values are rounded to
the nearest lakhs, expect where otherwise indicated.

22 Summary of material accounting policies

(a) Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current
classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:

Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

Held primarily for the purpose of trading

Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability
for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

A liability is current when:

e It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

e It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

e It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

e There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its
operating cycle.

(b) Foreign currencies
Functional and presentation currency

The Company’s financial statements are presented in INR, which is also the Company’s
functional currency. Presentation currency is the currency in which the Company’s financial
statements are presented. Functional currency is the currency of the primary economic
environment in which an entity operates and is normally the currency in which the entity
primarily generates and expends cash. All the financial information presented in Indian
Rupees (INR) has been rounded to the nearest of lakhs rupees, except where otherwise stated.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company’s entities at their
respective functional currency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for
recognition. However, for practical reasons, the Company uses an average rate if the average
approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in
profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary
items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the
change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or
loss is recognised in Other comprehensive income (“OCI”) or profit or loss are also
recognised in OCI or profit or loss, respectively).




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(c) Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date except to
certain instruments which are measured at Amortized cost/ historic cost.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either:
o In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
e In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling
it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for
which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
e Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities
e Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable
e Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis,
the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The Company determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value
measurement, such as derivative instruments and unquoted financial assets measured at fair
value. External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets and liabilities. The
management selects external valuer on various criteria such as market knowledge, reputation,
independence and whether professional standards are maintained by valuer. The management
decides, after discussions with the Company’s external valuers, which valuation techniques ,
and inputs to use for each case.




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

At each reporting date, the management analyses the movements in the values of assets and
liabilities which are required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Company’s
accounting policies. For this analysis, the management verifies the major inputs applied in the
latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and
other relevant documents.

The management, in conjunction with the Company’s external valuers, also compares the
change in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external sources to determine
whether the change is reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the
level of the fair value hierarchy.

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are
given in the relevant notes.

e Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions (note 30)
* Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy (note 34)
e Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost) (note 34)

d) Revenue recognition

The Company earns revenue primarily from the business of carrying developing, owning,
acquiring, renovating and promoting hotels, motels, resorts, restaurants, etc. under the brand
of Lemon Tree Premier, Lemon Tree Hotel, Red Fox Hotel and Aurika.

The Company apply Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” which establishes
a comprehensive framework to depict timing and amount of revenue to be recognised.

In arrangements for room revenue and related services, the Company has applied the guidance
in Ind AS 115 for recognition of Revenue from contract with customer, by applying the
revenue recognition criteria for each distinct performance obligation. The arrangements with
customers generally meet the criteria for considering room revenue and related services as
distinct performance obligations. For allocating the transaction price, the Company has
measured the revenue in respect of each performance obligation of a contract at its relative
standalone selling price. The price that is regularly charged for an item when sold separately is
the best evidence of its standalone selling price.

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is
being made. Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured at the
amount of transaction price (net of variable consideration) allocated to that performance
obligation. The transaction price of goods sold and services rendered is net of variable
consideration on account of various discounts and schemes offered by the Company as part of
the contract. The Company assesses its revenue arrangements against specific criteria to
determine if it is acting as principal or agent. The Company has concluded that it is acting as a
principal in all of its revenue arrangements. The specific recognition criteria described below
must also be met before revenue is recognized.




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Value added tax (VAT)/Goods and Service Tax(GST) is not received by the Company on its
own account. Rather, it is tax collected on value added to the commodity by the seller on
behalf of the government. Accordingly, it is excluded from revenue.

Rooms, Restaurant, Banquets and Other Services

Income from guest accommodation is recognized on a day to day basis after the guest checks
into the Hotels and are stated net of allowances. Incomes from other services are recognized
as and when services are rendered. Sales are stated exclusive of Value Added Taxes (VAT)
/Goods and Service Tax(GST) and Luxury Tax. Difference of revenue over the billed as at the
year-end is carried in financial statement as unbilled revenue separately.

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer, sale of food and beverage are recognized at
the points of serving these items to the guests. Sales are stated exclusive of VAT/Goods and
Service Tax(GST).

Interest income

For all financial instruments measured at amortized cost, interest income is recorded using the
effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period,
where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or liability. Interest
income is included in finance income in the income statement.

Dividends

Revenue is recognized when the Company’s right to receive the payment is established, which
is generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

Government grant

Government grants are assistance by government in the form of transfers of resources to an
entity in return for past or future compliance with certain conditions relating to the operating
activities of the entity. They exclude those forms of government assistance which cannot
reasonably have a value placed upon them and transactions with government which cannot be
distinguished from the normal trading transactions of the entity. Government grants are
recognized where there is reasonable assurance that the Company will comply with the
conditions attached to it and that the grants will be received.

Grants are presented as part of income in the statement of profit and loss; alternatively they
are deducted in reporting the related expense.

(e) Taxes

Taxes comprises current tax and deferred tax.
Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from

‘profit before tax’ as reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items of income or

expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
__wine deductible. The current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or’
/ A<~ substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. {'




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are
those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where the
Company operates and generates taxable income.

Current tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in
correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where
appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet approach method on temporary differences
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

¢ When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

e In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, and
associates, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward
of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilised, except: '

e  When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss

e In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised '

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets (including MAT credit available) is reviewed at
each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to
the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. i
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Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in
correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to
set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same
taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Tax benefits acquired as part of a business combination, but not satisfying the criteria for
separate recognition at that date, are recognised subsequently if new information about facts
and circumstances change. Acquired deferred tax benefits recognised within the measurement
period reduce goodwill related to that acquisition if they result from new information obtained
about facts and circumstances existing at the acquisition date.

If the carrying amount of goodwill is zero, any remaining deferred tax benefits are recognised
in OCY/ capital reserve depending on the principle explained for bargain purchase gains. All
other acquired tax benefits realised are recognised in profit or loss.

Value added taxes/goods and service tax paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring
expenses

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of value added taxes/goods and service
tax paid, except:

e When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the
taxation authority, in which case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition
of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable

e When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as
part of receivables or payables in the balance sheet.

® Property, plant and equipment(including capital work in progress)

Property plant and equipment (PPE) is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the.
plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition
criteria are met. Such properties are classified to the appropriate categories of property, plant
and equipment when completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on
the same basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are ready for their
intended use. Freehold land is not depreciated. Capital work in progress is stated at cost.

When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the
Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a
major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and
equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and
maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is
included in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met.
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Depreciation on fixed assets is provided as per schedule II of Companies Act, 2013 on
Straight Line Method over its economic useful life of PPE as follows:

Property plant and equipment Useful life considered
(SLM)

Building 60 Years/Lease remaining life
Plant & Machinery 15 Years
Electrical installations and fittings 10 Years

Office Equipments 5 Years

Furniture and Fixtures 8 Years
Commercial Vehicles 6 Years

Private Vehicles 8 Years
Computers 3 Years

Crockery, cutlery and soft furnishings 3 Years

Networks and Servers 6 Years

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is
derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the
income statement when the asset is derecognized.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and
equipment are reviewed at each financial year end, and adjusted prospectively if appropriate.

(g Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of
intangible assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the date of
acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated
intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and the related
expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as 3 years and the same shall be amortised on
straight line basis over its useful life.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but are tested for impairment
annually at year end either individually or at the cash generating unit level. The assessment of
indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be
supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective
basis.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognized in the income statement when the asset is derecognized.




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(h) Borrowing costs
Borrowing cost includes interest expense as per Effective Interest Rate (EIR).

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are capitalised
as part of the cost of the asset until such time that the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use. Where funds are borrowed specifically to finance a project, the amount
capitalised represents the actual borrowing costs incurred. Where surplus funds are available
out of money borrowed specifically to finance a project, the income generated from such
current investments is deducted from the total capitalized borrowing cost. Where the funds
used to finance a project form part of general borrowings, the amount capitalised is calculated
using a weighted average of rates applicable to relevant general borrowings of the Company
during the year. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended and charged to profit and loss
during the extended periods when the active development on the qualifying assets is
interrupted.

EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the
expected life of the financial liability or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the amortised
cost of a financial liability after considering all the contractual terms of the financial
instrument.

(i) Leases

The Company assesses that the contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right
to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To
assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the
Company assesses whether:

(1) The contract involves the use of an identified asset,

(2) The Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the identified
asset, and

(3) The Company has the right to direct the use of the identified asset.

Company as a lessee

The Company recognizes right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset
for the lease term at the lease commencement date. The cost of the right-of-use asset measured
at inception shall comprise of the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date plus any initial
direct costs incurred. The right-of-use assets is subsequently measured at cost less any
accumulated depreciation, accumulated impairment losses, if any and adjusted for any
remeasurement of the lease liability. The right-of-use asset is depreciated from the
commencement date over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset.
Right-of-use assets are tested for impairment whenever there is any indication that their
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. Impairment loss, if any, is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss.
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The Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments over the
lease term. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if
that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company
uses incremental borrowing rate. For leases with reasonably similar characteristics, the
Company adopts the incremental borrowing rate for the entire portfolio of leases as a whole.
The lease payments shall include fixed payments, variable lease payments, exercise price of a
purchase option and payments of penalties for terminating the lease. The lease liability is
subsequently remeasured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease
liability, reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made and remeasuring the
carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease modifications or to reflect revised in-
substance fixed lease payments.

The Company recognises the amount of the re-measurement of lease liability as an adjustment
to the right-of-use asset. Where the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced to
zero and there is a further reduction in the measurement of the lease liability, the Company
recognizes any remaining amount of the re-measurement in statement of profit and loss.

The Company has elected not to apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 to leases for which the
underlying asset is of low value. The lease payments associated with these low value leases
are recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Company as a lessor

Leases where the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases. Lease rentals under operating
leases are recognized as income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

() Inventories

Stock of food & beverages, stores and operating supplies are valued at lower of cost and net
realisable Value. Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on a first in first out
basis.Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less
estimated cost of completion and estimated costs necessary to make sale.

(k) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may
be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is
required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair valueless costs of
disposal and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or Company of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its
recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable
amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining net selling price, recent
market transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such transactions can be
identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.These calculations are corroborated by
valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair
value indicators. ‘

\
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The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations,
which are prepared separately for each of the Company’s CGUs to which the individual assets
are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years.
For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash
flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered by the
most recent budgets/forecasts, the Company extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget
using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be
justified. In any case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for
the products, industries, or country in which the entity operates, or for the market in which the
asset is used.

Impairment lossesincluding impairment on inventories, are recognised in the statement of
profit and loss.

An assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication
exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions
used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was
recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its
recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such
reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

()] Provisions
General

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive)
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of
profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.

[f the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current
pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a
finance cost.

Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current
best estimate. If it is no longer probable that an outflow of resources would be required to
settle the obligation, the provision is reversed. T
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Contingent Assets/ Liabilities

Contingent assets are not recognised. However, when realisation of income is virtually
certain, then the related asset is no longer a contingent asset, and is recognised as an asset.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in notes to accounts when there is a possible obligation
arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount
cannot be made.

(m) Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The
Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The
Company recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when
an employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service
received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit
payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already
paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before
the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment
will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

Retirement benefit in the form of gratuity is a defined benefit scheme.Gratuity liability of
employees is accounted for on the basis of actuarial valuation on projected unit credit method
at the close of the year. Company’s contribution made to Life Insurance Corporation is
expensed off at the time of payment of premium.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling,
excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return
on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability),
are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to
retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:
e The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
e The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or
asset.TheCompany recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as
an expense in the statement of profit and loss:
e Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on
curtailments and non-routine settlements; and
e Net interest expense or income

Retirement benefits in the form of Superannuation Fund is a defined contribution scheme and
the contributions are charged to the statement of profit and loss of the year when the
contributions to the respective funds are due. There are no other obligations other than the
contribution payable to the respective trusts




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(n)

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries,
annual leave and sick leave in the period the related service is rendered at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefits are measured at the
present value of the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made by the Group in
respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date.

The Company treats leave expected to be carried forward for measurement purposes. Such
compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected
unit credit method at the year-end. Remeasurementgains/losses are immediately taken to the
statement of profit and loss and are not deferred. The Company presents the entire leave as a
current liability in the balance sheet, since it does not have an unconditional right to defer its
settlement for 12 months after the reporting date. Where Company has the unconditional
legal and contractual right to defer the settlement for a period beyond 12 months, the same is
presented as non-current liability.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not
recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. However, trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component are measured at transaction price. Purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in
the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the
Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following

categories:

e Debt instruments at amortised cost

e Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL)
Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCT)
Equity instruments in subsidiaries carried at cost

Debt instruments at amortised cost
A debt instrument is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and

¢



Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding,

This category is the most relevant to the Company. The difference between the transaction
amount and amortized cost in case of interest free loan to subsidiaries based on the expected
repayment period is considered as ‘deemed investment on account of interest free loan to
subsidiaries’ (Refer Note 7(ii)). After initial measurement, such financial assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in
finance income in the profit or loss. If there is any change in estimate for payment of loan
(provided that there was no error in original estimate) , difference in carrying amount and
repayment has been adjusted as return on capital by the parent, based on condition/ situation
prevailing on that date. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or
loss.

Debt instrument at FVTPL
FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments.

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets
amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if
doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as
‘accounting mismatch’). The Company has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL.

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all
changes recognized in the P&L.

Equity investments

All equity investments (other than equity investments in subsidiaries) in scope of Ind AS 109
are measured at fair value. Equity instruments in subsidiaries are carried at cost in separate
financial statements less impairments if any. Equity instruments included within the FVTPL
category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the P&L.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of
similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s balance
sheet) when:

o The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

» The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed
an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party
under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.
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Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit
risk exposure:

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans,
debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance

b) Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOCI

¢) Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on
Trade receivables:

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in
credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each
reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL
which results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all
cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity is
required to consider:

e All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension,
call and similar options) over the expected life of the financial instrument. However,
in rare cases when the expected life of the financial instrament cannot be estimated
reliably, then the entity is required to use the remaining contractual term of the
financial instrument

e Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are

integral to the contractual terms
ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as
income/ expense in the statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under the
head ‘other expenses’ in the P&L. The balance sheet presentation for various financial
instruments is described below:

e Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables and
lease receivables: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the
measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net
carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Company does not
reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

e Debt instruments measured at FVTOCI: There are no instruments measured at
FVTOCI.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value

through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.
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All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings
including bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for
trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the
purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial
instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in
hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are
designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are
satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes
in own credit risk are recognized in OCL. These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to
P&L. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All
other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
The Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit and
loss.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing
loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised ‘cost using the EIR method.
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well
as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as
finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

This category generally applies to borrowings. For more information refer Note 15.
Financial guarantee

Financial guarantees issued by the Company on behalf of group companies are designated as
‘Insurance Contracts’. The Company assess at the end of each reporting period whether its
recognised insurance liabilities (if any) are adequate, using current estimates of future cash
flows under its insurance contracts. If that assessment shows that the carrying amount of

its insurance liabilities is inadequate in the light of the estimated future cash flows, the entire
deficiency is recognised in profit or loss.

If a financial guarantee is an integral element of debts held by the entity, it is not accounted
for separately.

AT
3¢
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(0)

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-

term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

(p) Measurement of EBITDA

(@

The Company has elected to present earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortization
(EBITDA) as a separate line item on the face of the statement of profit and loss. The Company measures
EBITDA on the basis of profit/ (loss) from core business operations. In its measurement, the Company
does not include finance costs, finance income, depreciation and amortization, exceptional items, if any
and tax expense.

Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, where by profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of
transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or
payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash
flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

(r)Earnings Per Share (EPS)

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of
the Company by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the

Company by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted
average number of Equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive. potential Equity

q
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Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

5. Other intangible Assets Rs in lakhs

Particulars Software Goodwill Total
Gross Carrying Amount (I)
As at April 1, 2022 348.17 0.08 348.25
Additions 2.10 - 2.10
As at March 31, 2023 350.27 0.08 350.35
Additions 0.49 - 0.49
As at March 31, 2024 350.76 0.08 350.84

Accumulated Depreciation (II)

As at April 1, 2022 245.48 0.06 245.54
Amortisation/impairment 42.62 0.02 42.64
As at March 31, 2023 288.10 0.08 288.18
Amortisation/impairment 25.49 - 25.49
As at March 31, 2024 313.59 0.08 313.67

II1. Net Carrying amount(I-II)

As at March 31, 2024 37.17 - 37.17
As at March 31, 2023 62.17 - 62.17
Notes

a) The Intangible assets are valued at cost.The Company has not revalued these assets during the year.

6. Right-of-use asset* Rs. In lakhs
Particulars Amount
Gross Carrying Amount (I)

As at April 1, 2022 14,415.15
Disposal -

As at March 31, 2023 14,415.15
Additions 439.48
As at March 31, 2024 14,854.63

Accumulated Depreciation (II)

As at April 1, 2022 3,037.85
Amortisation 643.95
As at March 31, 2023 3,681.79
Amortisation 590.53
As at March 31, 2024 4,272.32

II1. Net Carrying amount(1-IT)
As at March 31. 2024 10,582.31
As at March 31, 2023 10,733.36
*refer note 32

Notes: :
a) The lease agreement for leasehold properties is registerd in the name of the Company.
b) Right-of-use assets are valued at cost.The Company has not revalued these assets during the year,

(This space has been intentionally left blank)




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to standalone fi ial stat ts for the year ended March 31, 2024

7. Financial assets

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
(i) Investments
(A) Investment in Companies with hotel properties
Investments at cost
Unquoted equity shares of subsidiary companies at cost
3,52,677 (Previous Year: 3,52,677) equity shares of Celsia Hotels Private Limited of Rs. 1 6,973.93 6,973.93
each fully paid.
3,82,80,000 (Previous Year: 3,82,80,000) equity shares of Inovoa Hotels and Resorts Limited 3,843.54 3,843.54
of Rs. 10 each fully paid.
82,10,000 (Previous Year: 82,10,000) equity shares of Hyacinth Hotels Private Limited of 13,245.53 13,245.53
Rs. 1 each fully paid.*
17,68,94,900 (Previous Year: 17,68,94,900) equity shares of Tora Hotels Private Limited of 34,923,10 34,923.10
Rs. 1 each fully paid.*
5,45,51,616 (Previous Year: 5,45,51,616) equity shares of Berggruen Hotels Private Limited 49,511.32 49,511.32
of Rs. 10 each fully paid.*
1,31,110 (Previous Year : 1,31,110) equity shares of Bandhav Resorts Private Limited of Rs. 2,603.27 2,603.27
100 each fully paid.
Deemed investment (equity portion) on account of interest free loan to subsidiaries
Berggruen Hotels Private Limited 2,566.05 839.89
Celsia Hotels Private Limited h 7.47 7.47
Inovoa Hotels and Resorts Limited 4742 47.42
Hyacinth Hotels Private Limited 52.90 52.90
Tora Hotels Private Limited 6347 63.47
Bandhav Resorts Private Limited 1.77 1.77
(A) 1,13.839.77 1,12,113.61
(B) Other investments
Investments at cost
Unquoted equity shares of subsidiary companies at cost
2,50,000 (Previous Year: 2,50,000) equity shares of Ophrys Hotels Private Limited of Rs. 1 2.50 2.50
each fully paid.
Investment in Limited Liabiliy Partnership (at cost)
Investment in Mezereon Hotels LLP 1.00 1.00
Unquoted equity shares of companies other than subsidiary and associate companies at
fair value through profit and loss
4,109 (Previous Year: 4,109) equity shares of SEP Energy Private Limited of Rs.10 each 041 0.41
fully paid.
(B) 391 3.91
(A*B) 1.13.843.68 L1175
Current = a
Non-Current 1,13,843.68 1.12.117.52
1,13.843.68 1.12.117.52
*The above investment in subsidiaries are pledged as security against borrowings. Refer note 32(iii).
¢ Asat As at
March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
(ii) Loans
Unsecured, considered good
Loans to subsidiaries at amortized cost (refer note 11(iv) and note 33) 4,878.78 2,319.39
4.878.78 2,319.39
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
(iii) Other non-current financial assets
Unsecured, considered good
Security Deposits : 795.28 950.17
Interest accrued on deposits with banks and others* 33.24 69.56
Fixed Deposits under lien* 148.51 139.36
977.03 1,159.09
Less Provision for doubtful assets (462.26) {462.26)
514.77 696.83

* Fixed deposits under lien and interest accrued on deposits includes deposits lien marked with banks against guarantees issued in favour of various
_ Government departments.

'skins N




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

8. Non-current tax assets (net)

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
Advance Income Tax (net of provision for taxation) 771.28 703.14
Total 771.28 703.14
9. Other non-current assets
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
Unsecured considered good
Balance with statutory/ government authorities 10.73 10.73
Prepaid expenses - 1.96
Total 10.73 12.69

(This space has been intentionally left blank)



Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

10. Inventories
(valued at lower of cost or net realisable value, unless otherwise stated)

As At As At
March 31,2024  March 31, 2023
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
Food and beverages (excluding liquor and wine) 98.79 62.29
Liquor and wine 90.28 78.00
Stores, cutlery, crockery, linen, provisions and others (valued at cost) 343.54 284.31
Total 532.61 424.60

(This space has been intentionally left blank)




Fleur Hotels Private Limlted
Notes to standalone financlal statements for the vear ended March 31, 2024

11. Finmneial assets

Asat Asal
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
R¢ In lakhs Rs in lakhs

(i) Trade receivables#

Trade receivables

‘Unsecured, considered good 2,233.57 1,874.64
Trade Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk 20032 150.58
Less: Provision for expected credit loss (200.32) (150.58)
Total 2,233.57 1,874.64
Trade receivables 2,233.57 1,874.64

2,133,587 1.874.64

No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any other person. Nor any trade or other receivable are due
from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or 8 member, Trade receivables are non interest bearing and are generally on terms
of 30 to 90 days from the date of invoice.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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Fleur Hotels Private Limited

Notes to dal lal for the year ended March 31, 2024
Asat Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rs In lakhs Rs in lakhs
(if) Cash and cash equivalents
Balance with banks
On current accounts 813.27 246.34
Cash on hand 18.99 2036
83126 266.70
Reconclliatlon of Movements of liabilites to cash flows arising from financing activites
Asat Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rs in Jakhs Rs in lakhs
Particulars
Balance as at beginning of the year-Borrowings and lease labilites 1,16,366.36 1,10,930.43
M due to pay (received)/made (14,912.73) (4,246.97)
Movement due to non cash transactions in lease liabilites and borrowings
-Addition 439.48
-Accrual of finance cost 10,475.00 9,602.33
-Amortization of processing fee B6.93 80.58
Balance as at end of the year- Borrowings and lease liabilites 1,12,455.04 1,16.366.36
Asat As al
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rs in lakhs Rs in Jakhs
(ili) Other bank balances
Deposits with original maturity of more than 3 months and less than 12 months
750.00 330,00
750.00 33000
Asat Asal
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rs In lakhs Rs in lakhs
(iv) Loans*#
Unsecured, considered good
Loans and advance 1o related parties 1178116 14.476.85
*read with note 33 11,781.16 14476.55
#D ¢ of loans or advances given by the Company in the nature of loans granted to related parfics. Rs in lakhs
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Amount of loan % of total Loans. Amount of lean or
or advance in the and Advances in advance in the
nature of loan the nature of nature of loan

% of total Loans and
Advances In the
nature of loans

Type of Borrower outstanding loans oulstanding

4L

Loan to Related parties (Subsidiaries)

-Non current(refer note (7(ii)} 4,878.78 2,319.39

<Current 11,781.16 14476.85
Total 16,659.94 100" 16,796.24 100%
(v} Other current financlal assets Asat As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs

Security deposits* 192.00 -
Interest accrued on deposits with banks and others 4443 27.77
Bank deposits with more than 12 months maturity 23.10 -
*read with note 33 25_'}.53 FiNi

Break up of current financlal assets carried at amortlsed cost

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
(i) Trade receivables 2,233,57 1,874.64
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 832,26 266.70
(iii) Security deposits 192.00 -
(iv) Interest accrued on deposits with banks and others 44.43 2777
(v) Bank deposits with more than 12 months maturity 23.10 -
(vi) Other bank balances 750.00 330.00
(vii) Loans & advance to subsidiaries 11,781.16 14,476.85
Total current financlal assets carried at amortised cost 15,856,852 16.975.96
12. Other current assetfs
As At As At
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
R in lakhe Rs in lakhs

Advances recoverable® 352.49 267.50
Balance with statutory/ government authorities 946.92 1,002.64
Government incentive reccivable** 493,17 86.61
Prepaid expenses 406.08 343 51
Total 1,198.67 1,726

*read with note 33
*~read with note 40




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to standalone financial stat

ts for the vear ended March 31, 2024

13(a). Equity Share capital

Authorised Equity Share Capital Equity shares
(Equity shares of Rs 10 each)

No. of shares Rs in lakhs
As at April 1, 2022 13,58,50,000 13,585.00
Increase during the year - -
As at March 31, 2023 13,58,50,000 13,585.00
Increase during the year - -
As at March 31, 2024 13,58,50,000 13,585.00

Authorised Preference Share Capital

Preference Shares
(Face Value of Rs. 100 each)

Preference Shares
(Face Value of Rs, 10 each)

No. of shares Rs in lnkhs Nao. of shares Rs in lakhs
As at April 1,2022 10,00,000 1,000.00 1,14,00,000 1,140.00
Increase/(decrease) during the year - - - -
As at March 31, 2023 10,00,000 1,000.00 1,14,00,000 1,140.00
Increase/(decrease) during the year - - - -
As at March 31, 2024 10,00,000 1.000.00 1,14,00,000 1,140.00

Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of the
Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion
to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

Issued equity capital*

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid No. of shares Rs in lakhs
As at April 1, 2022 9,24,55,153 9,245.52
Increase/(decrease) during the year - -
As at March 31, 2023 9,24,55,153 9,245.52
Conversion of CCPS into equity shares during the year 53,76,340 537.63
As at March 31, 2024 0,78.31,493 0,783.15
(a) Shares held by Holding company
As at As At
March 31, 2024 Muarch 31, 2023

No. of shares Ry in lnkhs No. of shares Rs in lakhs
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid
Lemon Tree Hotels Limited 5,76,30,968 5,763.10 4,94,94,240 4,949.42
(b) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

As at As At
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Name of the sharcholder No. of shares %o held No. of shares % held
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid
Lemon Tree Hotels Limited 5,76,30,968 58.91% 4,94,94,240 53.53%
APG Strategic Real Estate Pool N.V 4,02,00,525 41.09% 3,79,91,385 41.09%
Dandelion Hotels Private Limited* - - 49,69,528 5.38%

*Merged with Lemon Tree Hotels Limited vide order dated December 14, 2023, appointed date April 1, 2022.

(c) Aggregate number of bonus share issued, share issued for consideration other than cash and shares bought back during the period of five years immediately preceding the
reporting date

Mareh 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
No. of shares No. of shares

(i) Equity shares allotted as fully paid, pursuant to amalgamations 2,18,22,900 2,18,22,900

(This space has been intentionally left blank)




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to standal financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2024

13(b). Instruments entirely equity in nature

Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares of Rs 10 each fully paid* Rs in lakhs

As at April 1, 2022 537.63
Increase/(decrease) during the year -
As at March 31, 2023 537.63
Conversion of CCPS into equity shares during the year (537.63)
As at March 31, 2024 -

(a) Shares held by Holding company

Asat As At
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
No. of shares Rs in lakhs No. of shares Rs in lakhs
Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid
Lemon Tree Hotels Limited - - 22,00,000 220.00
(b) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company
As at As At
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Name of the shareholder No. of shares % held No. of shares % held
Lemon Tree Hotels Limited - - 22,00,000 40.92%
APG Strategic Real Estate Pool N.V - - 31,76,340 59.08%

*On June 22, 2020, Fleur Hotels Private Limited had made allotment of 53,76,340 Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) of Rs. 10 each at a premium of Rs. 315.50 per
share to APG Strategic Real Estate Pool N.V (first tranche) which were to be converted into equity shares on or before December 21, 2022. During the year ended March 31, 2023 the
Holding Company (Lemon Tree Hotels Limited) has purchased 22,00,000 CCPS from APG Strategic Real Estate Pool N.V. Further during the year ended March 31, 2024 the Holding
Company (Lemon Tree Hotels Limited) has purchased additional 9,67,200 CCPS from APG Strategic Real Estate Pool N.V.

Further on July 28, 2023, the Board of Directors of Fleur Hotels Private Limited have approved the conversion of CCPS into one (1) equity share of Rs. 10 in accordance with the
terms of issuance and accordingly 53,76,340 CCPS have been converted to equity shares in 1:1 ratio.

14. Other equity

Securities Premium Rs in lakhs

As at April 1, 2022 1,65,539.10
Increase/(decrease) during the year =
As at March 31, 2023 1,65,539.11
Increase/(decrease) during the year -
As at March 31, 2024 1,65,539.11
Preference Share Capital (equity component of redemable, non convertable preference shares) Rs in lakhs

As at April 1, 2022 83.58
Increase/(decrease) during the year -
As at March 31, 2023 : 83.58
Increase/(decrease) during the year -

As at March 31, 2024 83.58
Surplus/(deficit) in the Statement of Profit and Loss ) Rs in lakhs

As at April 1, 2022 (18,256.09)
Profit for the year 3,575.05
As at March 31, 2023 (14,681.04)
Profit for the year 5,604.60
As at March 31, 2024 (9,076.44)




Fleur Hotels Private Limited

Notes to standalone financial sta ts for the vear ended March 31, 2024
Other comprehensive income Rs in lakhs
As at April 1, 2022 3.10
Increase during the year 1.98
As at March 31, 2023 5.08
Increase during the year (1.64)
As at March 31, 2024 3.44
Capital Reserve Account Rs in Jakhs
As at April 1, 2022 (710.65)
Increase/(decrease) during the year -
As at March 31, 2023 (710.65)
Increase/(decrease) during the year -
As at March 31, 2024 (710.65)
As at Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
Other reserves
Securities Premium 1,65,539.11 1,65,539.11
Preference Share Capital (equity component of redemable, non convertable preference shares) 83.58 83.58
Surplus/(deficit) in the Statement of Profit and Loss (9,076.44) (14,681.04)
Other comprehensive income 344 5.08
Capital Reserve Account (710.65) (710.65)
Total 1.55.839.04 1.50.236.08

Securitles premium: Securities premium comprises premium received on issue of shares.
Preference Share Capital (equity component of redemable, non convertable preference shares): represents component of equity of 5% reedemable non
cummulative Preference share Captial (transferred on merger of Meringue Hotels Private Limited).

Surplus in the Statement of Profit and Loss: Surplus in the Statement of Profit and Loss represents balances of profit and loss at each period/year end.
Other comprehensive income: Other comprehensive income represents accumulated balances of Remeasurement (losses)/gains on defined benefit plans.

Capital Reserve Account; Capital reserve account is recorded as difference between share capital issued and the amount of share capital of the transferor.
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Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

15. Financial Liabilities

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Rs in lakhs Rs in Jakhs

(i) Borrowings
Non-current borrowings
Term Loans
Loans from Banks (secured)
Yes Bank Limited (Refer note 4, 5 and 6 below) 32,945.71 34,098.11
Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited (Refer note 1 and 3 be]ow) 6,365.11 7,430.04
Indusind Bank Limited ( Refer Note 7 and 8 below) 6,315.12 6,791.57
Axis Bank Limited( Refer Note 9, 10 and 11 below) 21,968.02 23,576.95
HDFC Bank Limited (Refer 2, 14, 15, 16 and 17 below) 10,840.63 13,619.96
Vehicle loans (Refer note 18 below) 16.45 38.90
Loans from financial institutions
Aditya Birla Finance Limited ( Refer Note 12 and 13 below) 10,385.70 11,600.50
Total non-current borrowings §8,836.74 97,156.03
Current maturity of loans from Banks (secured)
Yes Bank Limited (Refer note 4, 5 and 6 below) 1,202.90 870.09
Indusind Bank Limited ( Refer Note 7 and 8 below) 47171 150.00
Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited (Refer note I and 3 below) 1,070.08 607.58
HDFC Bank Limited (Refer 2, 14, 15, 16 and 17 below) 2,779.33 650.00
Vehicle loans (Refer note 18 below) 29.97 49.97

Axis Bank Limited( Refer Note 9, 10 and 11 below) 1,623.46 330.96
Loans from financial institutions
Aditya Birla Finance Limited ( Refer Note 12 and 13 below) 1,228.34
Current maturity of loans 8411.79 2,638.60
Less: Amount clubbed under “Short term borrowings”(refer note 19(i)) (8,411.7%) (2,658.60)

Net current borrowings = -
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Fleur Hotels Private Limited

Notes to standalone financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2024

16.Lease liabilities*

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rs in 1akhs Rs in lakhs
Balance at beginning of the year 14,343.35 14,239.33
Additions during the year 439.48 -
Interest accrued during the year (refer note 26) 1,412.82 1,375.12
Less: Payment of lease liabilities 1,274.44 1,271.10
Balance at end of the year 14,921.21 14,343.35
Current 89.85 87.75
Non-Current 14,831.36 14,255.60
*Refer note 32
17. Provisions
Asat Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
Provision for gratuity (refer note 31) 36.84 36.92
Current 7.60 7.13
Non-current 29.24 29.79
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
Provision for leave benefits 47.12 49.40
Current 47.12 49.40
Non-current . .
As at Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
Provision for stamp duty (refer note 45) 86.36 86.36
Current 86.36 86.36
Non-current - -
Total current 141.08 142.90
Total non-current 29.24 29.79

(This space has been intentionally left blank)



Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

18. Deferred tax assets (net)

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023-
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 9,559.60 8,435.32
Revaluation of land 405.04 405.04
Deferred tax liabilities 9,964.64 8,840.36
Impact of expenditure charged to the statement of profit and 279.72 357.75
loss in the current/ earlier period but allowable for tax purposes
on payment basis
Right to use asset/lease liability 1,387.08 1,210.22
Provision for doubtful debts and advances 50.50 37.99
Effect of unabsorbed depreciation and business losses carried 7,274.49 6,249.79
forward
Interest on loan u/s 43B 906.35 920.53
Gratuity : 9.27 9.29
Non moving inventory 0.87 0.87
Leave compensation 11.86 12.43
Security deposits-impact on discounting 44.49 41.50
Deferred tax assets (refer note 30(e)) 9,964.64 8,840.36

Deferred tax Assets/Liabilities (net) -

Nore: As at March 31, 2024, the Company has carry forward tax losses of Rs 2,167.87 (March 31, 2023: Rs 3,433.64 lakhs)
(with expiry of Rs 304.21 lakhs in financial year 2028-29 and Rs 1,863.66 in financial year 2029-30) and unabsorbed
depreciation of Rs 37,064.07 lakhs (March 31, 2023: 37,064.07 lakhs) with no expiry. Further Considering that nature of the
Company’s operations and history of past tax losses, deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be generated in future against which the deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unabsorbed
depreciation and tax losses can be utilised. Accordingly, it is considered prudent to recognize the deferred tax assets only to
the extent of deferred tax liabilities and the Company has not recognised deferred tax assets of Rs 2,591.64 lakhs (March 31,

2023: Rs 4,076.50 lakhs).

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for March 31, 2024

and March 31, 2023:
For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs

Profit before tax 5,602.96 3,577.03
Tax rate 25.17% 25.17%
Tax at statutory income tax rate 1,410.15 900.27
Effect of non-deductible expenses ' - 0.20)
Unrecognized tax assets (recognised and utilized) (net) (1,409.79) (900.07)

Net tax expense as statement of profit and loss -




Fleur Hotels Private Limited

Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

19. Financial liabilities

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs

(i) Short term borrowings

Loan from related party (unsecured, repayable on demand) 285.30 357.80
Cash credit from banks (Secured) * - 1,850.58
Current maturities of long-term borrowings (refer note 15) 8,411.79 2,658.60
Total 8,697.09 4,866.98

*The Cash credit facility from Yes Bank is repayable on demand and carries interest rate of 8.97% p.a.(March 31, 2023

secured by way of:

1 9.48% p.a.) and is

a)Exclusive charge on all movable assets and current assets of Lemon Tree Hotel Kolkata and Lemon Tree Premier Pune and Lemon Tree

Hotel in sector 60 Gurgaon

b) First charge on all present & future immovable fixed assets(80% portion of undivided part of land) of the Lemon Tree Premier Andheri

kurla Road, Mumbai

¢)First charge on all present & future movable fixed assets and current assets of the Lemon Tree Premier Andheri kurla Road, Mumbai
d) Corporate Guarantee of Lemon Tree Hotels Limited (Holding Company)

Basis on several terms and conditions as specified in sanction letters, the company submits quarterly returns/statements comprising of lease
deposit schedules , cash flow mismatch statements and unaudited quarterly statements with banks/ financial institution and these
returns/statements are materially in agreement with the books of accounts.

(iii) Trade Payables*#

-total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises

and small enterprises

*read with note 33
Total

Trade payables

Trade payables to related parties (Holding company)

(This space has been intentionally left blank)

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs

600.28 563.58

2,756.74 4,392.62

3,357.02 4,956.20

As at Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs

3,002.08 2,404.83

354.94 2,551.37

3,357.02 4,956.20
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Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(iv) Other financial liabilities As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
Security Deposits 46.44 46.44
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 189.56 164.76
Book overdraft - 12.72
Payable for capital goods 3.99 -
Total 239.99 223.92
20. Other current liabilities
As at Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
Advance from customers 764.77 400.32
Statutory dues (Provident fund, GST, TDS and other statory dues) 462.26 280.27
Total 1,227.03 680.59

(This space has been intentionally left blank)




Fleur Hotels Private Limited

Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

21. Revenue From operations

For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Rs. in lakhs Rs. in lakhs
Sale of products and services
-Room rental 33,394.32 29,393.83
- Food and beverage (excluding liquor and wine) 5,534.43 5,019.53
- Liquor and wine 744.28 598.18
- Banquet rentals 280.59 257.85
- Telephone and telex 0.36 021
- Other Services (including service charge income) 2,499.09 2,155.12
Other Operating Revenue
-Government grant (refer note 40) 838.52 -
Revenue From operations 43,291.59 3742472
22. Other income
For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Rs. in lakhs Rs. in lakhs
Profit on sale of property, plant & equipment - 6.26
Rent received - 11.66
Provision no longer required written back 6.74 19.84
Government grant (refer note 40) - 86.61
Miscellaneous income 40.30 1.90
Total 47.04 126.27
23. Cost of food & beverages consumed
For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Rs. in lakhs Rs. in lakhs
(a) Consumption of food & beverages excluding liquor & wine
Inventory at the beginning of the year 62.29 52.10
Add: Purchases 2.457.66 2.104.68
2,519.95 2,156.78
Less: Inventory at the end of the year 98.79 62.29
Cost of food and beverage consumed 2,421.16 2.094.49
(b) Consumption of liquor & wine
Inventory at the beginning of the year 78.00 64.08
Add: Purchases 236.53 180.85
314.53 244.93
Less: Inventory at the end of the year 90.28 78.00
Cost of liquor and wine consumed 224.25 166.93
Total (a+h) 2.645.41 2.261.42
24. Employce benefits expense
For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rs. in lakhs Rs. in lakhs
Salaries, wages and bonus 4,928.10 424298
Contribution to provident fund and other funds 296.32 267.28
Gratuity expense (refer note 31) 12.34 11.70
Staff welfare expenses 413.66 468.15
Total 5,650.42 4,990.11

(This space has been intentionally left blank)



Fleur Hotels Private Limited

Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

25(a). Power and fuel
For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rs. in lakhs Rs. in lakhs
Power and fuel 2,672.53 2,557.89
Total 2,672.53 2,557.89
25(b). Stamp duty expense
For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rs. in lakhs Rs. in lakhs
Stamp duty expense - 478.42
Total - 478.42
25(c). Other expenses
For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rs. in lakhs Rs. in lakhs
Consumption of stores, cutlery, crockery, linen, provisions and others 497.14 426.30
Linen & uniform washing and laundry expenses 563.84 423.08
Guest transportation 344.32 203.11
Spa expenses 182.67 143.95
Subscription charges 68.24 67.04
Repair and maintenance
- Buildings 855.61 286.43
- Plant and machinery 436.42 37428
- Others 420.90 296.58
Rent (refer note 32) 109.00 84.79
Rates and taxes 828.50 849.43
Insurance 149.19 127.45
Communication costs 111.37 101.56
Printing and stationery 114.56 91.80
Traveling and conveyance 31.26 33.93
Vehicle running and maintenance * 59.42 49.31
Advertisement and business promotion 1,324.79 1,165.84
Management fee paid 3,126.50 2,614.99
Commission -other than sole selling agent 2,048.46 1,550.72
Security and cleaning expenses 328.44 291.68
Membership and subscriptions 5.56 6.71
Legal and professional fees 245.51 201.84
Donation - 0.78
Provision for doubtful debts and advances 49.74 -
Loss on write off/sale of Property, Plant & Equipment 27.87 -
Payments to auditor* 58.90 50.99
Miscellaneous expenses 259.73 176.91
Total 12,247.94 9,619.50
*Payments to auditor (excluding Goods and service tax)
For statutory audit 48.00 33.00
For tax audit 1.00 1.00
For attestation service 8.00 15.00
Out of pocket expense 1.90 1.99
58.90 50.99

(This space has been intentionally left blank)




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

26. Finance costs

For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rs. in lakhs Rs. in lakhs
Interest
- on term loans from banks 7,879.73 7,233.08
- on loans from others 1,118.61 1,066.64
- on vehicle loans 6.53 9.79
- on other credit facilities from banks 57.30 30.28
- on lease liability ( refer note 16) 1,412.82 1,375.12
Bank charges (including commission on credit card collection) 255.88 257.26
Total 10,730.87 9,972.17
27. Finance income
For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rs. in lakhs Rs. in lakhs
Interest Income on :
-Bank Deposits 33.16 26.16
-Others 278.73 305.11
Total 311.89 331.27
28. Depreciation and amortization expense
For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Rs. in lakhs Rs. in lakhs
Depreciation on tangible assets (refer note no. 3) 3,482.73 3,741.10
Depreciation on right-of-use asset ( refer note 6 & 32) 590.53 643.96
Amortization on intangible assets (refer note no. 5) 25.49 42.64
Total 4,098.75 4.427.70

29. Earnings Per Share (Basic EPS And Diluted EPS)

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the earning/(loss) for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Equity shares that will be issued upon the conversion of mandatory convertable preference shares
are included in evaluation of basic EPS

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the earning/(loss) attributable to equity holders of the Company (after adjusting for interest on the
convertible preference shares) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of
equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into equity shares.

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Eaming/(loss) attributable to equity holders (for basic and diluted) 5,604.60 3,575.05
Weighted average number of equity Shares (for basic and diluted earnings per
share)* 9,78,31,493 9,78,31,493
Basic and Diluted earnings per share 5.73 3.65

* The weighted average number of shares takes into account the weighted average effect of changes in share transactions during the year. There have
been no other transactions involving Equity shares or potential Equity shares between the reporting date and the date of authorisation of these financial
statements.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)




30.

Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities and other commitments. Uncertainty about these judgements, estimates and assumptions could
result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future
periods. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market
changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the
assumptions when they occur. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis and the
revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised.

Critical judgements, estimates and assumptions
a. Impairment of property, plant and equipment

Each hotel property is an identifiable asset that generates cash inflows and is independent of the cash inflows of the
other hotel properties, hence identified as cash generating units. The Company assesses the carrying amount of
hotel properties (CGU) to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. Where the carrying amount of CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is
written down to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss (if any) is recognised in the statement of profit and
loss.

While assessing the recoverable amount, the Company used the discounted cash flow approach including various
significant estimates and assumptions such as forecast of future revenue, operating margins, growth rate and
selection of the discount rates. The key assumptions used for the calculations are as follows::

Particulars As at March 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Discount Rate (pre tax rate of WACC) 11.70%-13.50% 12.50%
Long Term Growth Rate 5.00% 5.50%

As at March 31, 2024, the estimated recoverable amount of the CGU exceeded its carrying amount.
b. Impairment of Investment in subsidiaries and associates

The Company assesses the carrying amounts of investment in subsidiaries having hotel properties to determine
whether there is any indication that those investments have suffered an impairment loss. Where the carrying amount
of investments exceed its recoverable amount, the investment is considered impaired and is written down to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss (if any) is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

While assessing the recoverable amount, the Company used the discounted cash flow approach including various
significant assumptions such as such as forecast of future revenue, operating margins, growth rate and selection’of
the discount rates. The key assumptions used for the calculations are as follows:

Particulars As at March 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Discount Rate (pre tax rate of WACC) 11.70%-13.50% 12.50%
Long Term Growth Rate 5.00% 5.50%

As at March 31, 2024, the estimated recoverable amount of the investments exceeded its carrying amount.




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

c. Leases

The Company has taken certain land and building on long term lease basis. The lease agreements generally have an
escalation clause and are generally non-cancellable. In assessing whether the Company is reasonably certain to
exercise an option to extend a lease, or not to exercise an option to terminate a lease, it considers all relevant facts
and circumstances that create an economic incentive for the Company to exercise the option to extend the lease, or
not to exercise the option to terminate the lease. The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as
per the requirements of IND AS 116. Identification of a lease requires judgment. The Company uses judgement in
assessing the lease term and the applicable discount rate. The discount rate is generally based on the incremental
borrowing rate.

d. Loss Allowance on trade receivables (Expected credit loss)

An impairment analysis of trade receivables is performed at each reporting period based on the Company’s history
of collections, customer’s creditworthiness, existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates. Basis
this assessment, the allowance for doubtful trade receivables as at March 31, 2024 is considered adequate.

31. Gratuity

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan (funded). The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of
Gratuity Act, 1972. Under the act, employee who has completed five years of service is entitled to specific benefit.
The level of benefits provided depends on the member’s length of service and salary at retirement age. The fund has
the form of a trust and it is governed by the Board of Trustees, which consists of an equal number of employer and
employee representatives. The Board of Trustees is responsible for the administration of the plan assets and for the
definition of the investment strategy. The Trust Fund has taken a Scheme of Insurance, whereby these contributions
are transferred to the insurer. The Company makes provision of such gratuity liability in the books of accounts on
the basis of actuarial valuation as per the Projected unit credit method.

Rs. in lakhs
As at March 31, As at March 31,
2024 2023
Gratuity plan 36.84 36.92
Total 36.84 36.92
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Fleur Hotels Private Limited

Notes to Standalone financial statements for the year ended March
31, 2024

The major categories of plan assets of the fair value of the total plan assets are as follows:

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Unquoted investments:
Asset invested in insurance scheme with the LIC 100% 100%
Total 100% 100%

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations for the Company’s plans are shown
below:

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Discount rate:

Pension plan 7.10% 7.20%
Future salary increases:

Pension plan 5.00% 5.00%
Life expectation for pensioners at the age of 65: Years Years
Pension plan

Male 60 60
Female 60 60

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as at March 31, 2024 is as shown below:

India gratuity plan:
Rs in lakhs
March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,
2024 2024 2024 2024
Assumptions Discount rate Future salary increases
Sensitivity Level 1% increase 1% decrease 1% increase 1% decrease
Impact on defined benefit 178 1.90 192 1.83
Jblizatioh ({018 : : )




Fleur Hotels Private Limited

Notes to Standalone financial statements for the year ended March
31, 2024

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as at March 31, 2023 is as shown below:

Rs. in lakhs
March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,
2023 2023 2023 - 2023
Assumptions Discount rate Future salary increases
Sensitivity Level 1% increase 1% decrease 1% increase 1% decrease
Impact on defined benefit
(1.81) 1.94 1.96 (1.86)

obligation

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on
defined benefit obligation as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of
the reporting period.

The following payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in future years:

Rs. in lakhs
Duration (Years) For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
1 14.71 14.94
2 12.11 12.90
3 9.57 10.69
4 8.79 8.45
5 7.14 7.34
Above 5 22.73 23.16
Total expected payments 75.05 77.48

The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is Syears
(March 31, 2023: Syears).
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32. Commitments and contingencies

a. Leases
Operating lease commitments — Company as lessee
The Company has entered into operating leases on hotel buildings, with lease terms between twenty

three, twenty fiveand forty years.Refer Noteno.6 for carrying value of right to use asset recognised and
Refer Note no.16 for carrying value of lease liability and the movement during the year.

The weighted average of incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities is 9.72%(March 31,
2023: 9.72%)

During the year, the Company has reassessed its decision to exercise right to renewer for a certain
property based on business performance of the property. Accordingly lease liability has been remeasured
using the revised discount rate i.e, 9.10% and adjustment in done in value of ROU and lease liability

b. Commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for:

At March 31, 2024, the Company had commitments of Rs.Nil (March 31, 2023: 45.90 Lakhs)
c. Contingent liabilities

(i) Legal claim contingency

Rs. in lakhs
March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023
a. [Service Tax* 10.06 102.45
b. |Income tax** 27.25 27.25

*amount paid under protest— Nil (March 31 2023, 23.10 lakhs)
**amount paid under protest/adjusted against refund — 10.72 lakhs

The Company has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately provided for
where provisions are required and disclosed as contingent liabilities where applicable, in its financial
statements. The Company does not expect the outcome of these proceedings to have a materially adverse
effect on its financial statements.

(i) For financials guarantee given to banks on behalf of and in respect of term loan facilities availed by
its group companies refer note 32(d).

(ili) Pledge of shares

(a) Pledge of 30% and lien of 21% in favour ofTrustee on the basis of Non-disposable undertakingof the
shareholding held in Hyacinth Hotels Private Limited by the Company for term loan facility availed




Fleur Hotels Private Limited

Notes to Standalone financial statements for the year ended March
31, 2024

availed by Hyacinth Hotels Private Limited. Amount of Loan outstanding as on March 31, 2024 of
Rs. 11,041.44 (March 31, 2023: Rs 13,726.45 lakhs).

(b) Pledge of 30% of shareholding held in Berggruen Hotels Private Limited by the Company for term
loan availed by Berggruen Hotels Private Limited from Yes Bank Limited. Amount of Loan
outstanding as on March 31, 2024 is Rs. 3,448.68 lakhs. (March 31, 2023: Rs. 6,458.28 lakhs)

(c) Pledge of 30% of shareholding held in Iora Hotels Private Limited by the Company for term loan
availed by Iora Hotels Private Limited from Yes Bank Limited. Amount of Loan outstanding as on
March 31, 2024 is Rs. 19,900 lakhs. (March 31, 2023: Rs. Nil)

(d) Pledge of 30% of shareholding held in Iora Hotels Private Limited by the Company for term loan
availed by Iora Hotels Private Limited from Axis Bank Limited. Amount of Loan outstanding as on
March 31, 2024 is Rs. 16,900 lakhs. (March 31, 2023: Nil)

(d) Financial guarantees

The Company has issued financial guarantees to banks on behalf of and in respect of term loan facilities
availed by its group companies for construction of new hotel project. In accordance with the policy of
the Company (refer note 2.2(n) the Company has designated such guarantees as ‘Insurance Contracts’.
The Company has classified financial guarantees as contingent liabilities. These financial guarantees are
an integral element of debts held by entities, hence has not been accounted for separately. Accordingly,
there are no assets and liabilities recognized in the balance sheet under these contracts. Refer below for
details of the financial guarantees issued:

(Rs in lakhs)
Loan Guarantees Loan Guarantees
Outstanding as on Outstanding ason
as on March | March 31, | as onMarch | March 31,
31,2024 2024 31,2023 2023
a. |Counter guarantees issued in respect of “ 675.59 - 674.11
guarantees issued by Company’s
bankers
b. |Guarantee given on behalf of Hyacinth 7,858.78 11,500.00 9,465.79 16,105.00
Hotels Private Limited
c. |Guarantee given on behalf of Celsia 1,791.22 2,709.00 2,550.78 2,709.00
Hotels Private Limited
d. |Guarantee given on behalf of Inovoa 2762.77 3,481.00 3,025.27 3,481.00
Hotels and Resorts Limited
e. |Guarantee given on behalf of Berggruen |  3,448.68 3,887.00 6,458.28 18,600.00
Hotels Private Limited
f. |Guarantee given on behalf of Iora Hotels 36,800 48,000.00 - -
Private Limited
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(¢) Note on Provident Fund:

Based upon the legal opinion obtained by the management, Company is not required to create provisions
in books of accounts in view of the judgement of the Hon’ble Supreme court in the case of
Vivekananda Vidyamandir vs Regional Provident Fund Commissioner (II), West Bengal and
subsequent dismissal of review petition by Hon’ble Supreme court in the case of review petition No.
001972-001973/2019 in civil appeal 3965-3966 in the matter of Surya Roshni Ltd Vs Employees
Provident Fund and Another.

Considering the equitable cause, the High Courts may give prospective effect to the judgement which can
be done in exercise of inherent powers of High Court under Article 226 of the constitution of India.

In case of Company retrospective effect is remote and at present uniformity is maintained across all
brands/grades.

33. Related Party Transactions

Names of related parties
Holding Company - Lemon Tree Hotels Limited

Subsidiary Company - Celsia Hotels Private Limited
- Inovoa Hotels and Resorts Limited
- Iora Hotels Private Limited
- Ophrys Hotels Private Limited
- Hyacinth Hotels Private Limited
- Bandhav Resorts Private Limited
-Berggruen Hotels Private Limited

Fellow subsidiary companies - Manakin Resorts Private Limited
-Hamstede Living Private Limited
-Canary Hotels Private Limited
- Sukhsagar Complexes Private Limited
- Oriole Dr. Fresh Hotels Private Limited

Limited Liability Partnership - Mezereon Hotels LLP
Key Management Personnel (KMP) - Mr. Patanjali Govind Keswani (Managing Director)
- Mr Aditya Madhav Keswani (Director)(w.e.f May 27,
2022)

-Mr Niten Malhan (Independent Director)

-Mr. Dominic James Doran (Director)

-Mr. Paramartha Saikia (Independent Director)

-Mr. Ashish Kumar Guha (Independent Director)

-Dr. Arindam Kumar Bhattacharya (Independent
Director)

- Mr. Pradeep Mathur (Chairman and Independent
Director) ‘

-Ms. Freyan Jamshed Desai (Independent Director)
(w.e.f. August 09, 2023)
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Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by - Toucan Real Estates Private Limited
key management personnel or their relatives

Enterprise in which Holding Company has -Mind Leaders Learning India Private Limited
Significant Influence

Additional related parties as per Companies Act 2013 with whom transactions have taken place during
the year:

Chief Financial Officer -Mr. Inder Pal Batra (Upto January 31, 2024)
-Mr. Mayank Sharma (w.e.f February 05, 2024)
Company Secretary -Mrs. Sonali Manchanda (Upto November 30,
2023)

-Mzs. Isha Jain (w.e.f. February 05, 2024)
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Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

Outstanding balances with related parties at the year-end are unsecured and interest free and
settlement occurs in cash. For the year ended March 31, 2024, the Company has not recorded any
impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties (March 31, 2023: INR Nil).
This assessment is undertaken each financial year through examining the financial position of the
related party and the market in which the related party operates.

Commitments with related parties

The Company has not entered into any commitments with related parties during the year.

34. Fair value measurement

This section gives an overview of the significance of financial instruments for the Company and
provides additional information on the balance sheet. Details of significant accounting policies,
including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which income and
expenses are recognised, in respect of each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity
instrument

a. Financial Assets (other than equity investment/ deemed investment in subsidiaries
carried at cost)

Rs. in lakhs
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
FVTPL Amortised Cost FVTPL Amortised Cost
Financial Assets
Trade Receivables - 2,233.57 - 1,874.64
Security Deposits - 525.02 - 487.92
Investment 0.41 = 041 -
Other bank
balances(including
Fixed deposits under
Lien) - 921.61 - 469.36
Cash and Cash
Equivalents - 832.26 266.70
Interest accrued on
deposit with banks
and others - 77.67 - 97.33
Loans 16,659.94 16,796.24
Total Financial
Assets (other than
equity investment/
deemed investment
in subsidiaries
carried at cost) 0.41 21,250.07 0.41 19,992.19

Note: The financial assets above do not include investments in subsidiaries which are measured at
cost in accordance with Ind AS 27.




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the. year ended March 31, 2024

b. Financial Liabilities

Rs. in lakhs
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
FVTPL Amortised FVTPL Amortised
Cost Cost

Financial
Liabilities
Borrowings - 97,533.83 - 102,023.01
Trade Payables L 3,357.00 - 4,956.20
Lease Liabilities - 14,921.21 - 14,343.35
Other Current
Financial - 223.92
Liabilities "ol o SR
Total Financial )
Liabilities B 116,052.03 121,546.48

¢. Fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and liabilities

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date under current market conditions.

The Company categorizes assets and liabilities measured at fair value into one of three levels
depending on the ability to observe inputs employed in their measurement which are described as
follows:

i) Level 1

Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

ii) Level 2

Inputs are inputs that are observable, either directly or indirectly, other than quoted prices included
within level 1 for the asset or liability.

iii) Level 3

Inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability reflecting significant modifications to
observable related market data or Company’s assumptions about pricing by market participants.




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

35 Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company's principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other
payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company's operations and to
support its operations. The Company's financial assets include loans, trade and other receivables, and
cash & cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's senior
management oversees the management of these risks. The Company's senior management is
supported by a financial risk committee that advises on financial risks and the appropriate financial
risk governance framework for the Company. This financial risk committee provides assurance to the
Company's senior management that the Company's financial risk activities are governed by
appropriate policies and procedure and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in
accordance with the Company's policies and risk objectives. The Board of Directors reviews and
agrees policies for managing each risk, which are summarised as below:

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises of interest rate risk, currency risk and
other price risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes
in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s long-term debt obligations with floating
interest rates. The Company is carrying its borrowings primarily at variable rate. The Company
expects the variable rate to decline in long term, accordingly the Company is currently carrying its
loans at variable interest rates.

Rs. In lakhs
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023

Variable rate borrowings 97,202.11 1,01,576.34

Fixed rate borrowings 331.72 446.67
Interest rate sensitivity

Particulars Increase/decrease in basis points Effecrion :::ﬁt pefore

March 31, 2024
Floating rate borrowing 50 (505.88)
Floating rate borrowing -50 505.88
March 31, 2023 .

Floating rate borrowing 50 (467.33)
Floating rate borrowing -50 467.33

Q




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company has no exposure in foreign currency.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or
customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its
operating activities (primarily trade receivables and deposits to landlords) and from its financing
activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions and other financial instruments

(a) Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by each business location subject to the Company's established
policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. Credit quality of a
customer is assessed and individual credit limits are defined in accordance with the assessment both in
terms of number of days and amount.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients. In
addition, a large number of minor receivables are grouped into homogenous groups and assessed for
impairment collectively. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying
value of each class of financial assets disclosed in Note 11. The Company does not hold collateral as
security.

Reconciliation of provision for doubtful debts - Trade receivables(including provision for
expected credit loss)

March 31,2024 | March 31,2023
Provision at beginning 150.58 150.58
Addition during the year 49.74 -
Reversal during the year - 0
Provision at closing 200.32 150.58

(b) Financial instruments and cash deposits

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company's treasury
department in accordance with the Company's policy. Investment of surplus funds are made only with
approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each counterparty. The Company's
maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the balance sheet at March 31, 2024 and
March 31, 2023 is the carrying amount as given in Note 11.

Liquidity risk

The Company monitors its risk of a shortage of funds by estimating the future cash flows. The
Company's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through
the use of bank overdrafts, cash credit facilities and bank loans. The Company assessed the
concentration of risk with respect to refinancing its debt and concluded it to be low. The Company has
access to a sufficient variety of sources of funding and debt maturity within 12 months can be rolled
over with existing lenders. As at March 31, 2024, the Company had no sanctioned balance(March 31,
2023: Nil) of undrawn committed borrowing facilities.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based-on

(L



Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the yea

r ended March 31, 2024

contractual undiscounted payments.

Rs. In lakhs
Less than 3 3to12
On demand months months 1 to 5 years > 5 years Total

Year ended
March 31, 2024
Borrowings® 285.30 1,827.11 6,584.67 38,846.83 50,721.22 98,265.13
Trade and other 3,357.00 - - i : 3,357.00
payables
O.the.r 'F.inanCial 239.99 - & = - 239.99
Liabilities

3,882.29 1,827.11 6,584.67 38,846.83 50,721.22 101,862.12
Year ended
March 31, 2023
Borrowings* 2,208.38 204.10 2,454.50 39,015.51 58,958.76 1,02,841.25
Trade and other 4.956.20 i - - i 4,956.20
payables
Other Financial
Liabilities 223.92 - - - - 223.92

7,388.50 204.10 2,454.50 39,015.51 58,958.76 1,08,021.37

*represents un-discounted cashflows

The table provides details regarding the contractual maturities
and March 31, 2023 as on undiscounted basis

of lease liabilities as of March 31, 2024

Particulars As at As at
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Minimum Lease Payments:
Not later than one year 1,369.42 1,276.54
Later than one year but not later than five years 6,130.39 5,887.00
Later than five years 29.,563.57 26,661.08
Total 37,063.38 33,824.62

36 Capital management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includesissuedequity capital, share
premium and all otherequityreservesattributable to the equityholders of the Company. The primary
objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximise the shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makesadjustments in light of changes in economic

conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants.

To maintain or adjust the capital structure,

the Companymayadjust the dividendpayment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue

new shares. The Company monitors capital

trade payables, less cash and cash equivalents.
et

using a gearing ratio, whichis net debtdividedby total
capital plus net debt. The Companyincludeswithin net debt, interestbearingloans and borrowings,

X



Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Rs. In lakhs
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Borrowings (Note 15 and Note 19)

(Net of Processing Fec) 97,533.83 1,02,023.01
Trade payables (Note 19) 3,357.00 4,956.20
Less: cash and cash equivalents (Note 11) 832.26 266.70
Net debt 100,058.57 1,06,712.51
Total capital 1,65,622.19 1,60,019.23
Capital and net debt 2,65,680.76 i 2,66,731.23
Gearing ratio 38% 40%

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things,
aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings
that define capital structure requirements.

Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and
borrowings. There have been no significant breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing
loans and borrowing in the current period.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years
ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023.

37. Amendements/Standards notified but not yet effective

a) The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing
standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For
the year ended March 31, 2024, MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to the
existing standards applicable to the Company.

b) Note on Social Security:

The Code on Wages, 2019 and Code on social security, 2020 (“the codes”) relating to
employee compensation and post-employment benefits that received Presidential assent
have not been notified. Further, the related rules for quantifying the financial impact have
not been notified. The Company will assess the impact of the codes when the rules are
notified and will record any related impact in the period in which the Codes become
effective.

There are no new amendements/standards (other than above) that are notified, but not yet effectlve up
to the date of issuance of the Company’s financial statements. ‘




Fleur Hotels Private Limited

Notes to financial statements

for the year ended March 31, 2024

38. Ratio Analysis and its elements

S.No. | Ratio Numerator Denominator | March March % Reason for |
2024 2023 Variance variance
1 Current Current Asset Current 1.35 1.74 (22.46%) -
Ratio liabilities
2 Debt Total Debt Shareholder 0.59 0.64 (7.63%) -
Equity equity
Ratio
3 Debt Earnings Debt service 1.55 1.77 (12.06%) -
service available for
coverage debt service
Ratio
4 Returnon | Net profit after | Average 3.44% 2.26% 52.35% Increase in
Equity taxes shareholders profit as
equity compared to
previous year
5 Inventory Cost of goods Average 16.06 17.63 (8.91%) -
Turnover sold Inventory(excl
Ratio uding Stores,
cutlery,
crockery,
linen)
6 Trade Net total sales Avg. accounts | 20.67 27.45 (24.71%) -
Receivable receivable
turnover
Ratio
7 Trade Net credit Average Trade | NA NA NA Not applicable
Payables purchase Payable to the Company
turnover considering
Ratio nature of
services of the
Company
8 Net capital | Net Sales Working 8.78 4.60 91.00% Increase in
Turnover capital revenue and
Ratio decrease in
working capital
levels as
compared to
previous year
9 Net Profit | Net Profit Net sales 13.20% 9.55% 38.20% Increase in
Ratio revenue as
compared to
previous year
10 Return on EBIT Capital 6.09% 5.05% 22.72% -
capital employed
employed
11 Return on Interest(Finance | Investment NA NA NA Not applicable
investment | income) to the Company
considering the
investments are
made to
subsidiaries
with long term
growth outlook




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(i) Earning for Debt Service = Net Profit after taxes + Non-cash operating expenses like depreciation
and otheramortizations + Interest + otheradjustments like loss on sale of Fixed assets etcwhich are

non cash in nature.

(ii) DebtService = Interest&Lease Payments + Principal Repayments (excludingprepayments).

(iii) Capital Employed= Networth+ Total Debt+Deferred TaxLiability-Net Intangible assets- Intangible
assets underdevelopment

(iv) Working Capital= Current Assets- Currentliabilities
(v) EBIT= Earningbeforeinterest and taxes

(vi) Net sales- Revenue from operations- Government grant

39. Segment Reporting

40,

41.

42,

The Company is into Hoteliering business. The Board of Directors of the Company, which has been
identified as being the chief operating decision maker (CODM), evaluates the Company performance,
allocate resources based on the analysis of the various performance indicator of the Company as a
single unit. Therefore there is no reportable segment for the Company as per the requirements of Ind
AS 108 — “Operating Segments”.

Information about geographical areas

The Company has only domestic operations and hence no information required for the Company as
per the requirements of Ind AS 108 — “Operating Segments”.

Information about major customers

No customer individually accounted for more than 10% of the revenue for the year ended March 31,
2024 and March 31, 2023.

a) During the year Company has received Entitlement certificate for subsidy under Tourism Policy (TP)
2016 dated December 1 2023, based on which the company shall be eligible for 100% of the SGST paid
on Lemon Tree Premier, Mumbai for a period of 7 years from the date of the entitlement certificate i.e.

December 1, 2023.

b)During the previous year Company has received Entitlement certificate for subsidy under Rajasthan
Investment Promotion Scheme (RIPS) 2014 dated December 6 2022, based on which the company shall
be eligible for 50% of the SGST paid on Aurika Hotels, Udaipur for a period of 7 years from the date of
the commencement of operation i.e. 29th October 2019.

The Company has complied with all the significant terms and conditions affixed to these grants.

The Company does not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which there are
any material foreseeable losses.

There is no such immovable property whose title deed is not in the favor of the Companyexcept
freehold land and building located at Andheri Mumbai admeasuring 5,552.9 sqmt whose title deeds are
in name of the Meringue Hotels Private Limited, erstwhile company that was merged with the Company
under Section 230-232 of the Companies Act, 2013 in terms of the approval of the National Company

Law Tribunal.

-
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Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Details of dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as per MSMED Act, 2006.
Rs. in Lakhs
March31, | March31,

2024 2023
the principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any|  600.28 563.58
supplier as at the end of each accounting year
the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Nil Nil
Micro Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 along with
the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed
day during each accounting year
the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making Nil Nil
payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the
year) but without adding the interest specified under Micro Small and
Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006.
the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each Nil Nil
accounting year; and
the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the Nil Nil
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are
actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a
deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro Small and Medium
Enterprise Development Act, 2006

44. There has been no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and

45.

46.

Protection Fund by the Company.

During the year ended March 31, 2022, the Company had made provision of estimated stamp duty
expense of Rs. 1525.03 lakhs on amalgamation of Meringue Hotels Private Limited, Begonia Hotels
Private Limited and Nightingale Hotels Private Limited. This provision of stamp duty expense was a
one- time expense of non-recurring nature. As on March 31, 2024, Company is carrying provision of Rs
86.36 lakhs (refer note 17).

As per the proviso to Rule 3(1) of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, for the financial year
commencing on or after the 1% day of April 2023, every company which uses accounting software for
maintaining its books of account, shall use only such accounting software which has a feature of
recording audit trail of each and every transaction, creating an edit log of each change made in the
books of account along with the date when such changes were made and ensuring that the audit trail
cannot be disabled.

The Company uses SAP S/4 HANA as its accounting software operated for recording all the accounting
transactions for the year ended March 31, 2024. SAP S/4 HANA has a feature of recording audit trail
(edit log) facility which has not been enabled throughout the year.

In respect of maintaining revenue records, the Company has used an revenue management software.
The said software has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility from July 1, 2023, except the
software does not have feature of audit trail at database level.

The Management has adequate internal controls over financial reporting which were operating
effectively for the year ended March 31, 2024. The Management is in the process of evaluating the
options to ensure compliance with the requirements of proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Compames
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 referred above in respect of audit trail (edit log).
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Other Statutory Information

@

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)
™

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(2)

(b)

(ix)

(2)

(b)

The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual currency during the
financial year.

The Company have not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts
that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under
the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the
Income Tax Act, 1961.

The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been
initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property under
Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988.

The Company do not have any transaction with companies struck off.

The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered
with ROC beyond the statutory period.

The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of
section 2 of the Act read with Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules,
2017.

During the year, the Company has not entered into any scheme of arrangements in terms of
section 230 to 237 of the Companies Act, 2013 and accordingly, the prescribed disclosures of
Schedule III are not required to be given.

The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the
Intermediary shall:

directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or,

provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries

The Company have not received any funds from any person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the
Intermediary shall:

directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or,

provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

The Company is not required to spend towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) as per
Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, since there is no average profit in the last 3 years
calculated as per the provisions of the Act..
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Previous year figures have been regrouped/ reclassified wherever necessary to correspond
with the current year classification.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Fleurgotels Private Limited

<Al onone P v

— Patamjali Govind Keswani Aditya Madhav Keswani
Managing Director Director
DIN-00002974 DIN-07208901
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Mayank Sharma
Cqmpany Secretary Chief Financial Officer
Mem. no.-A25838
Place : New Delhi Place : New Delhi

Date :May 28, 2024 YVEL o




